ASSESSED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT TASMANIA UNDER THE RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2009

From: Gilmour, Martin <Martin.Gilmour@dpac.t
Sent: Friday, 1 September 2023 1:33 PM
To: Bauche, Nicole <Nicole.Bauche@nre.tas.gov:
Subject: RE: Holding Lines - racing investigatigm

Hi Nicole — this is a draft of our rele@ge that should go out about 2.30

1 September 2023 Q

Felix Ellis, Minigter fé* Racing

A

Strengthening the integrity of harness
racing in Tasmania

The Rockliff Liberal Government is a proud supporter of Tasmania’s racing community and the
thousands of people who are part of it.

The Government has taken strong action to protect the integrity of the racing community and
strengthen animal welfare outcomes, because we take these matters seriously.
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The Government has received the interim report from Mr Ray Murrihy that relates to allegations of
team driving, race fixing and animal welfare concerns in the Tasmanian harness racing industry
and the management of those issues by the Office of Racing Integrity.

Felix Ellis, Minister for Racing, said the work that Mr Murrihy is undertaking supports the strong
action already being delivered through the Monteith Review and the recent release of the draft
Racing Regulation and Integrity Bill 2023. The draft Bill includes the creation of a Tasmanian
Racing Integrity Commissioner, who will have powers to set integrity and animal welfare
standards.

“The draft Bill is currently open for public comment until 6 October 2023 and provides certainty to
the racing industry which generates more than $185 million in economic activity for Tasmania and
involves more than 5800 people across the State. The Bill can be accessed here.

“The Tasmanian Government will now consider Mr Murrihy’s interim report and provide a
response in due course.

“I thank Mr Murrihy for delivering this interim report, while he continues to work thr a final
report. It is important that this investigation ensures procedural fairness to thosg®mv - this is
an independent process and the work is vital and should not be rushed.

"l also acknowledge the many industry members and stakeholders who eng ith Mr Murrihy
through the extensive and comprehensive review process,” Minister Ellis

Martin Gilmour
Senior Media Adviser
Tasmanian Government Communications Office

Public Buildings, 53 St John Street, LAUNCESTON TAS 7250

Phone: | e-mail: martin.gilmour@dpac.tas.gov.au

.au>; Gilmour, Martin <Martin.Gilmour@dpac.tas.gov.au>;
Gaetani, Luke <Luke.Gaetani@dpac.tas.gov.au>; Rotger, Carole <Carole.Rodger@dpac.tas.gov.au>
Cc: News Events <News.Events@nre.tas.gov&»; Round, Allison (NRE) <Allison.Round@epa.tas.gov.au>; Reid, Kirsty
(DPIPWE) <Kirstv.Reid@nre.tas.gov‘u>; Bowers, Kylie (NRE) <Kylie.Bowers@nre.tas.gov.au>

From: Bauche, Nicole <Nicole.Bauche@nre.tas.g
Sent: Friday, 1 September 2023 1:22 PM
To: Deayton, Elaina <Elaina.Deayton@dpac.tas.

Subject: Holding Lines - racing i
Good afternoon,

Please see below h wnes in regard to the racing investigation.

HOLDING L

e The anian Government has received the interim independent report into allegations of team
driving, race fixing, animal welfare concerns in the Tasmanian Racing Industry and management of those

issues by the Office of Racing Integrity.

e Investigator, racing and integrity expert, Ray Murrihy provided the interim report on the due date of 31

August.
e The Government will now consider the recommendations in the interim report.

e The Tasmanian Government undertook this investigation to ensure Tasmanians can have faith that the
welfare of animals is never compromised, and the integrity of the industry is above reproach, so if it is

important that we ensure a thorough investigation is undertaken.

2
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e Afinal report covering all of the terms of reference will be delivered once all information received during

this investigation is assessed completely and the investigator given the time for due diligence.

e We understand that the racing community and more broadly the Tasmanian community would like
answers to the questions which led to this investigation and the Government is committed to releasing

the findings once they have been provided.

Cheers,
Nicole

Nicole Bauche | Manager

Strategic Communications

Strategy and Business Services

Department of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania
134 Macquarie Street HOBART TAS 7000

M:
E: Nicole.bauche@nre.tas.gov.au
W: www.nre.tas.gov.au

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER:
The information in this transmission may be confidential and/or pr&gcted by legal professional privilege, and is intended only for the person or persons to
whom it is addressed. If you are not such a person, you are warned Wat any disclosure, copying or dissemination of the information is unauthorised. If you
have received the transmission in error, please immediately tact this office by telephone, fax or email, to inform us of the error and to enable
arrangements to be made for the destruction of the transmisSion, or its return at our cost. No liability is accepted for any unauthorised use of the information

contained in this transmission. V

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE AND DI AIMER

The information in this transigission nf8y be confidential and/or protected by legal professional privilege, and is intended only for the person or persons to
whom it is addressed. If ot such a person, you are warned that any disclosure, copying or dissemination of the information is unauthorised. If you
have received the tra sion | ror, please immediately contact this office by telephone, fax or email, to inform us of the error and to enable
arrangements to be the destruction of the transmission, or its return at our cost. No liability is accepted for any unauthorised use of the information
contained in this
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From: Gunner, Sam

Sent: Friday, 1 September 2023 6:20 PM

To: Crawford, Todd

Cc: James, Stuart (DPaC); Shirley, Pip; DeputySecretary.PD (DPaC)
Subject: RE: DPAC Draft Cabinet Minute Feedback

Hi Todd

That’s great news. And thanks so much to Pip and Stuart for making themselves available at short ngtice and being
incredibly collaborative throughout the process.

We will now progress the package to the Minister’s office, with an ‘under the line’ approval r Néxt week.

Thanks again, and don’t hesitate to reach out if you need anything further.

Warm regards ,
Sam Gunner (she, her, hers) | Director, Portfolio Sekvi
Strategy and Business Services
Department of Natural Resources and Envjro smania
134 Macquarie Street, Hobart
T: (03)

E: sam.gunner@nre.tas.gov.au
W: nre.tas.gov.au @

V4
From: Crawford, Todd <Todd.

! ac.tas.gov.au>
Sent: Friday, September 1, 202

To: Gunner, Sam <Sam.Gunner@nfe.tas.gov.au>

Cc: James, Stuart (DPaC) <St¥lart.James@dpac.tas.gov.au>; Shirley, Pip <Pip.Shirley@dpac.tas.gov.au>;
DeputySecretary.RD (DRaC) <DeputySecretary.PD@dpac.tas.gov.au>

Subject: DPAC Draff§€abinet Minute Feedback

Good after )

Thank you for taking the time to brief Pip and Stuart this morning in relation to the Murrihy Review and providing an
early copy of the Cabinet Package.

On review there is no significant feedback from DPAC and are satisfied with the direction that this work has taken.
The DPAC advisory will highlight the issues raised by the Interim Report including:
e the importance of ensuring that the recommended codes of practices being incorporated in the Rules of
Racing,
e the overall support for the legislative reform in the Interim Report, and,
e the necessity of a detailed response by Government following the provision of the Final Report.
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The DPAC advisory will also contain our standard commentary noting likely criticism given the in principle objections
by many members of the community.

If there is anything else you require please feel free to reach out.

Regards,
Todd

Todd Crawford | A/Deputy Secretary
Policy & Delivery

Department of Premier and Cabinet
Level 7, 15 Murray Street

Hobart, Tasmania 7000

ph: (03)

todd.crawford@dpac.tas.gov.au | www.dpac.tas.gov.au

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER

The information in this transmission may be confidential an rprotected by legal professional privilege, and is intended only for the person or persons to
whom it is addressed. If you are not such a perggn, you are warned that any disclosure, copying or dissemination of the information is unauthorised. If you
have received the transmission in error, pleage i diatgy contact this office by telephone, fax or email, to inform us of the error and to enable
arrangements to be made for the destrucij ission, or its return at our cost. No liability is accepted for any unauthorised use of the information
contained in this transmission.

N\
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From: Pinto, Vanessa

Sent: Wednesday, 29 November 2023 7:50 AM

To: Kay, Sarah (DoJ)

Cc: Gunner, Sam

Subject: Request for urgent advice - Murrihy Report

Attachments: FINAL REPORT - Independent investigation Harness Racing.pdf; 29112023 Request for OSG

advice - Racing Review.pdf

Importance: High

Good morning Sarah
Just following up from my email last night please find attached an urgent request for lega e pertaining to the
Murrihy Report.

| have attached the full report also.
If you have sometime available for a phone call to provide further context let knovl

Kind regards, Ness %
0
,<2~
\V;

Y4

From: Pinto §

Sent: Tues vember 2023 4:57 PM
To: Kay, SarahYPolJ) <Sarah.Kay@justice.tas.gov.au>
Subject: Request for urgent advice - Murrihy Report

Hi Sarah

| hope you are well. I'm just reaching out with a courtesy message ahead of a request I’'m anticipating to send
through tomorrow relating to the Ray Murrihy Racing Independent Report.

If you have some time available for a phone call tomorrow to provide additional context that would be great thank
you.

Let me know what time you have available.

Many thanks, Ness
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Department of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania NV
STRATEGY AND BUSINESS SERVICES DIVISION * 'k

Hobart GPO Box 44, Hobart, Tasmania, 7001 Tasmanian
Launceston PO Box 46, Kings Meadows, Tasmania, 7249 Government
Devonport PO Box 303, Devonport, Tasmania, 7310

Ph 1300 368 550
Web www.nre.tas.gov.au

29 November 2023

Mrs Sarah Kay SC
Solicitor-General
HOBART

INDEPENDENT RACING INVESTIGATION
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Please contact me on , vanessa.pinto@nre.tas.gov.au should you need to discuss this
request further. Alternatively, the contact officer for this matter is Sam Gunner on ,
sam.gunner@nre.tas.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

7.

Vanessa Pinto
CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER V4
Encl.

N/
&
N/

Y4

N\
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From: Gunner, Sam

Sent: Wednesday, 6 December 2023 12:10 PM

To: Kay, Sarah (DoJ)

Cc: Solicitor General (DolJ); Pinto, Vanessa; 'Heather Coetzee'

Subject: RE: [CLVF=035214-23]Independent Racing Investigation - Final Report Ray Murrihy
Hi Sarah

| am writing to following recent developments during the Short Inquiry Process into Tasracing in the | egislative
Council on 5 December 2023.

While Vanessa is currently engaged in interviews s roved the forwarding of this subsequent request to
you.

Please feel free to reach out if you would Iikc?o distuss this further.

Sam G @ e, her, hers) | Director, Portfolio Services
Strategy anggBusiness Services

Depagment of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania
34 Macquarie Street, Hobart

E: sam.gunner@nre.tas.gov.au
W: nre.tas.gov.au
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From: Gunner, Sam

Sent: Wednesday, 6 December 2023 4:29 PM

To: Solicitor General (DoJ)

Cc: Pinto, Vanessa

Subject: [CLVF = 03521423] - Independent Racing Investigation - Final Report Ray Murrihy
Hi Heather

Thanks so much for your time on the phone just now. As discussed, the Cabinet Office have just advised that as they
have an incredibly full agenda for the coming two weeks, they will only accept submissions up unt#’10am on Friday
for Cabinet submissions for the meeting on 12 December 2023.

Our Cabinet submission on the Ray Murrihy Final Report and subsequent Government Re can not however be
finalised until we receive legal advice pertaining the questions outlined in the above r tter.

| was calling to ascertain whether Sarah believed the timeline of advice back to as by C‘B tomorrow was realistic.

If you could please forward this on to Sarah, that would be greatly appregi r et me know if | should speak to
someone else if the matter has been referred.

Thanks again for assistance.

Sam Gunner (she, her, her %Portfolio Services

Strategy and Business S

Department of Natural urces and Environment Tasmania
134 Macquarie Street, Hoba

M: ,

E: sam.gunngr@nre.tas.gov.au

Warm regards
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From: Kay, Sarah (Do))

Sent: Thursday, 7 December 2023 3:06 PM
To: Gunner, Sam

Subject: FW: #ADVICE - Racing Review
Attachments: #ADVICE - Racing Review.pdf

From: Kay, Sarah

Sent: Thursday, 7 December 2023 3:03 PM

To: Pinto, Vanessa (DPIPWE) <Vanessa.Pinto@nre.tas.gov.au>

Cc: Coetzee, Heather <Heather.Coetzee @justice.tas.gov.au>; Gunner, Sam (Communities)
<sam.gunner@communities.tas.gov.au>

Subject: #ADVICE - Racing Review

Dear Vanessa ,

Kind regards

Sarah Kay SC | Solicitor-General
Office of the Solicitor-General

p (O3) N | e soIicitor.general@iustice.tz%ov.au | w www.justice.tas.gov.au

I5 Murray Street, Hobart, TAS 7000 | GPO Box 825 Hobart, TAS 7001
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER ghilis. e Mail a ny attachments are confidential and may be legally privileged (in which case neither is waived or lost
by mistaken delivery). The email and any, ts'@Fe intended only for the intended addressee(s). Please notify us by return email if you have received this
email and any attachments by mistake, and em. If this email and any attachments include advice, that advice is based on, and limited to, the instructions
received by the sender. Any unauthorised us&f’this email and any attachments is expressly prohibited. Any liability in connection with any viruses or other
defects in this email and any attachme? is limited to re-supplying this email and any attachments.

N\

CONFIDENTIALI OTICE AND DISCLAIMER

The information in thi® transmission may be confidential and/or protected by legal professional privilege, and is intended only for the person or persons to
whom it is addressed. If you are not such a person, you are warned that any disclosure, copying or dissemination of the information is unauthorised. If you
have received the transmission in error, please immediately contact this office by telephone, fax or email, to inform us of the error and to enable
arrangements to be made for the destruction of the transmission, or its return at our cost. No liability is accepted for any unauthorised use of the information
contained in this transmission.
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TOR-GENERAL OF TASMANIA
15 MURRAY STREET, HOBART 7000
Telephone:  (03) 6165 3614

Fax: (03) 6173 0264
DX: 15 Hobart
TASMANIA e-mail: solicitor.general@justice.tas.gov.au
Our reference: 35214-23:SK

CLIENT LEGAL PRIVILEGE
The contents of this document are subject to client legal privilege.
Neither this document nor the substance of its contents may be
disclosed to any person who is not an agent of the Crown in right of
Tasmania without the written permission of the Attorney-General.

Your reference:

7 December 2023
ADVICE

Murrihy Review Report

To: Vanessa Pinto
Chief Operations Officer
Strategy and Business Services
Department of Natural Resources and Environgen ania

Introduction

1. I refer to your request for advic 29November 2023.
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5

26.  Should you wish to discuss this matter, please do not hesitate to contact me.

SARAH KAY SC
SOLICITOR-GENERAL
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From: Kay, Sarah (Do))

Sent: Thursday, 7 December 2023 7:01 PM
To: Pinto, Vanessa

Cc: Coetzee, Heather; Gunner, Sam
Subject: RE: #ADVICE - Racing Review
Attachments: #ADVICE - Racing Review(2).pdf

Thanks Vanessa

Sorry about sending to Sam’s previous email address. | must have used that gfhajysometime in the past.

Kind regards

Sarah Kay SC | Solicitor-General
Office of the Solicitor-General

p (03) [ | e solicitor.general@justice.tas.gov.au | w www.|
I5 Murray Street, Hobart, TAS 7000 | GPO Box 825 Hoba

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER: This email and any attach
by mistaken delivery). The email and any attachments are intended
email and any attachments by mistake, and delete them. If this egffa achments include advice, that advice is based on, and limited to, the instructions
received by the sender. Any unauthorised use of this email and atta ents is expressly prohibited. Any liability in connection with any viruses or other
defects in this email and any attachments, is limited to re-supplying®is email and any attachments.

Y4

From: Pinto, Vanessa <Vanessd.P as.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 7 December 2028 PM

To: Kay, Sarah <Sarah.Kay@justice™as.gov.au>

Cc: Coetzee, HeatherggHeater.Coetzee@justice.tas.gov.au>; Gunner, Sam (Communities)

<sam.gunner@c uRities.tas.gov.au>
Subject: RE: #ADVICR,- RacCing Review
Hi Sarah

Thank you so much for preparing this advice so quickly under the circumstances.

At this stage | don’t have any other follow up questions. But will advise tomorrow if | receive any points of
clarification we seek from you.
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Thank you again for the time you have put into this considering this within the short period of time and with your
commitments in Canberra.

Many thanks, Ness

Safe travels!

Vanessa Pinto (she, her, hers) | Chief Operations Officer

\rf" rd Strategy and Business Services
~ 7| Department of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania
,..g 134 Macquarie Street HOBART TAS 7000

Tasmanian v:

Government | E:vanessa.pinto@nre.tas.gov.au
W: www.nre.tas.gov.au

Delivering a sustainable Tasmania |

pay my respects to ¢

From: Kay, Sarah <Sarah.Kay@justice.tas.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 7 December 2023 3:03 PM

To: Pinto, Vanessa <Vanessa.Pinto@nre.tas.gov.au> V
Cc: Coetzee, Heather <Heather.Coetzee @justice.tas€€o >%6unner, Sam (Communities)

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

Chief Operations Officer %

Strategy and Business Services

Department of Natural Resources and Environgen ania
Introduction
1. | refer to your request for advic 2PNovember 2023 and the further requests of 2

and 6 December 2023.
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5

hould you wish to discuss this matter, please do not hesitate to contact me.

SARAH KAY SC
SOLICITOR-GENERAL
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From: Gunner, Sam

Sent: Friday, 8 December 2023 10:30 AM

To: James, Stuart (DPaC)

Subject: CABINET IN CONFIDENCE: Latest version

Attachments: Attachment B - Cabinet Minute - Murrihy Final Report (1).DOCX
Hi Stuart

As discussed, the bits in highlight are the only bits that have changed overnight. In summary, those changes are:

That’s it for now!

Warm regards
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Pinto, Vanessa
Friday, 8 December 2023 10:08 PM

To: Kay, Sarah (DoJ)

Cc: Coetzee, Heather; Gunner, Sam

Subject: RE: #ADVICE - Racing Review

Attachments: Instrument of Delegation - DOR to COO (Dec 2023).docx; [IMIN23-2507-07] Attachment 6.8.2 -
Summary Table of Recommendations and proposed Government Response.docx

Hi Sarah

There are a few matters on which | would appreciate further clarification and advice.
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Your advice will be of great assistance ahead of the Cabinet meeting Thursday next week and meetings with Harness
Racing Victoria. Happy to discuss in phone/person/via teams if that is also of assistance.

Kind regards, Ness

&

ner, Sam <Sam.Gunner@nre.tas.gov.au>

From: Kay, Sarah <Sarah.Kay@justice.tas.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 7 December 2023 7:01 PM

To: Pinto, Vanessa <Vanessa.Pinto@nre.tas.gov.au>
Cc: Coetzee, Heather <Heather.Coetzee@justice.tas.gow.aly: G
Subject: RE: #ADVICE - Racing Review




ASSESSED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT TASMANIA UNDER THE RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2009

From: Pinto, Vanessa <Vanessa.Pinto@nre.tas.gov.
Sent: Monday, December 11, 2023 9:06 AM
To: Kay, Sarah (DoJ) <Sarah.Kay@justice.tas.g

Cc: Coetzee, Heather <Heather.Coetzee@justice.t@g.gov.au>; Gunner, Sam <Sam.Gunner@nre.tas.gov.au>
Subject: RE: #ADVICE - Racing Review P 4

Hi Sarah

Many thanks, Ness
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From: James, Stuart <Stuart.James@dpac.tas.gov.au>
Sent: Wednesday, 13 December 2023 11:05 AM

To: Gunner, Sam

Cc: Pinto, Vanessa

Subject: Cabinet in Confidence: Murrihy Report

Good morning Sam,

The Advisory in relation to Murrihy Report was signed this morning and sent through to the Cabinet pffice. At the
same time we were advised that the Minute has been postponed until next year.

I've got a summary of the advisory below:

The Government commissioned the Murrihy Review into Racing Integrity in Marc following media
reports of potential racing rules breaches and a perceived failure by the Office of Raci ity (ORI) to address
these issues. P

Much of the Government’s response to the Murrihy Review is alrea eipg addressed in reforms agreed to
in response to the 2022 Monteith Review. This includes strengthesi vegfiance and accountability
through amendments to the Racing Regulation and Integrity Bil tRe abolishment of the Office of
Racing Integrity (ORI) and the establishment of the Tasmaniag Racj tegrity Commissioner (TasRIC). The

interim Murrihy Report (September 2023) fully supported t eith Review and the Government’s
proposed legislative changes.

Additional actions considered in this Minute to respw

e AnIndependent Stewards Panel to consi heplaying of charges.

e Strengthening Office of Racing Inte rodésses and procedures now, including personnel
matters, in anticipation of the new IC.

e Referring animal welfare issues tc}he PCA.

urrihy Review include:

The Murrihy Review and the reSponse will likely attract criticism from members of the Tasmanian community
who have animal welfare rgfate jg'Ctions to racing and others who will feel that this response does not go far
enough to strengthen the % dustry. NRET have developed a communications strategy to manage this
criticism.

Give me a call ifth&wything else you need.

Cheers,
Stu

Stuart James (he/him) | Senior Policy Analyst
Policy & Delivery

Department of Premier and Cabinet
Level 7, 15 Murray Street

Hobart, Tasmania 7000

Please note | do not work Thursdays.

Phone: (

stuart.james@dpac.tas.gov.au | www.dpac.tas.gov.au
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Kay, Sarah <Sarah.Kay@justice.tas.gov.au>
Wednesday, 13 December 2023 5:09 PM
To: Pinto, Vanessa
Cc: Coetzee, Heather; Gunner, Sam
Subject: RE: #ADVICE - Racing Review

Dear Vanessa
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Kind regards

Sarah Kay SC | Solicitor-General
Office of the Solicitor-General

p (03) T | e solicitor.general@justice.tas.gov.au | w www.justice.tas.gov.au
15 Murray Street, Hobart, TAS 7000 | GPO Box 825 Hobart, TAS 7001

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER: This email and any attachments are confidential and may be legally privileged (in which case gither is waived or lost
by mistaken delivery). The email and any attachments are intended only for the intended addressee(s). Please notify us by return em have received this
email and any attachments by mistake, and delete them. If this email and any attachments include advice, that advice is based on, and Mg

received by the sender. Any unauthorised use of this email and any attachments is expressly prohibited. Any liability in con

defects in this email and any attachments, is limited to re-supplying this email and any attachments.

Y4

From: Pinto, Vanessa <Vanessa.Pinto@nre.tas.gov.au>

Sent: Friday, 8 December 2023 10:08 PM

To: Kay, Sarah <Sarah.Kay@justice.tas.gov.au>

Cc: Coetzee, Heather <Heather.Coetzee@justice.tas.gov.au>; neg@am (NRE) <Sam.Gunner@nre.tas.gov.au>
Subject: RE: #ADVICE - Racing Review
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From: Gunner, Sam

Sent: Tuesday, 2 January 2024 1:49 PM
To: Kay, Sarah (DoJ)

Subject: release of the Murrihy Report

Hi Sarah

Happy new year! | hope you managed to get a bit of break during the closure period and that you have more to
come (assuming you’re back!).

We are currently preparing to publicly release the Murrihy Review and

Is this something that has been discussed previously between yourself

Warm regards

Sam Gunner (she, her, hers) | D|r io Services
Strategy and Business Service

Department of Natural Resg
134 Macquarie Street,
M:

E: sam.gunner@nre.tas. gov.
W: nre.tas.gov.au

Q\/
\’

a Enwronment Tasmania
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From: Gunner, Sam

Sent: Wednesday, 3 January 2024 11:47 AM

To: Rudolf, Jenny

Cc: Solicitor General (DoJ)

Subject: RE: release of the Murrihy Report; OSG ref 35214-23
HiJenny

Just FYI a letter has now been drafted and is pending the Secretary’s signature but will make its way o you shortly. |
will give you a call once you’ve had a chance to read it as | believe Sarah Kay has predominantly agliregsed this in her
previous response.

Will talk soon

Warm regards

Sam Gunner (she, her, hers) | Director, Portfolio Seryiges
Strategy and Business Services

Department of Natural Resources and Enviropment ania
134 Macquarie Street, Hobart

M:
E: sam.gunner@nre.tas.gov.au
W: nre.tas.gov.au

From: Rudolf, Jenny <Jenny.Rudolf @fusticg:tas.gov.au>

Sent: Tuesday, January 2, 20

To: Gunner, Sam <Sam.Gunner@gregtas.gov.au>

Cc: Solicitor General (Dol) <Sqlicitof.General@justice.tas.gov.au>
Subject: RE: release (ﬁl\zrrihy Report; OSG ref 35214-23

Hi Sam
I’'m afraid t ly Sarah is presently ‘across’ this matter. Could you confer further with Vanessa (?) or others at
your end to if you already have the advice you suggest may be needed.

If not, please 't hesitate to make a request (although | ask that you include relevant recent background,
concerns, legal questions, etc.)
Regards,

Jenny Rudolf | Assistant Solicitor-General

Office of the Solicitor-General, Department of Justice

p (03) | e jenny.rudolf@justice.tas.gov.au | w www.justice.tas.gov.au
I5 Murray Street, Hobart, TAS 7000 | GPO Box 825 Hobart, TAS 7001

From: Gunner, Sam <Sam.Gunner@nre.tas.gov.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 2 January 2024 1:50 PM
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To: Solicitor General <Solicitor.General@justice.tas.gov.au>
Subject: FW: release of the Murrihy Report

I You don't often get email from sam.gunner@nre.tas.gov.au. Learn why this is important
Hi folks

| just received Sarah’s out of office and am wondering whether anyone else may be across the Murrihy Review that
could assist with the enquiry below?

Warm regards

Sam Gunner (she, her, hers) | Director, Portfolio Services
Strategy and Business Services

Department of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania
134 Macquarie Street, Hobart

v
E: sam.gunner@nre.tas.gov.au

W: nre.tas.gov.au ,

From: Gunner, Sam

Sent: Tuesday, January 2, 2024 1:49 PM
To: Kay, Sarah (DolJ) <Sarah.Kay@justice.tas.gov.au

Subject: release of the Murrihy Report
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From: Rudolf, Jenny <Jenny.Rudolf@justice.tas.gov.au>

Sent: Thursday, 4 January 2024 11:20 AM

To: Office of the Secretary; Jacobi, Jason

Cc: Gunner, Sam

Subject: URGENT ADVICE - CONFIDENTIAL - Independent Racing Investigation; OSG 35214-23
Attachments: # advice DNRET release Murrihy Final Report; 35214-23.pdf
Importance: High

Categories: Completed

Dear Jason

Please find requested advice attached.

Regards,

Jenny Rudolf | Assistant Solicitor-General ,

Office of the Solicitor-General, Department of Justice
p (03) | e jenny.rudolf@justice.tas.gov.au | w www.justice.tas.gov.au
I5 Murray Street, Hobart, TAS 7000 | GPO Box 825 Hobart, TAS 7001

From: Office of the Secretary <OTS@nre.tas.gov.au>
Sent: Wednesday, 3 January 2024 4:21 PM
To: Solicitor General <Solicitor.General@justice.tas.gov.au>

Cc: Gunner, Sam (NRE) <Sam.Gunner@nre.tas.gov.au>
Subject: URGENT ADVICE REQUIRED - CONFIDENTIAL#Inde ent Racing Investigation
Good afternoon

On behalf of the Secretary, Jason Jacobi, please se®the attached correspondence for your attention.

Y4

Regards
Sally V

Sally She | Executive Officer
Officeggof the Secretary
‘ﬁ‘ { %’ggoy and Business Services
»‘ rk artment of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania
o= 134 Macquarie Street HOBART TAS 7000
Tas T: (03)

Gover en E: sally.shepherd@nre.tas.gov.au

W: www.nre.tas.gov.au

Please do not feel obliged to respond to my email outside your normal working hours.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER:

The information in this transmission may be confidential and/or protected by legal professional privilege, and is intended only for the person or persons to
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
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Department of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania ~_f ,

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY &'\ rﬁ

Hobart GPO Box 44, Hobart, Tasmania, 7001 —
Launceston PO Box 46, Kings Meadows, Tasmania, 7249 Tasmanian
Devonport PO Box 303, Devonport, Tasmania, 7310 Government

Ph 1300 368 550
Web nre.tas.gov.au

Inquiries: Vanessa Pinto
Phone:

Email: vanessa.pinto@nre.tas.gov.au
Our ref D24-5621

CONFIDENTIAL

Ms Jan Davis 2/
Chief Executive Officer
RSPCA Tasmania

By email: jdavis@rspca.org.au 6
Dear Ms Davis ;

| am writing to you regarding the independent iestigagigh into matters pertaining to the Harness

Racing Industry in Tasmania recently conduc y Murrihy.
While the Final Report is still being co the Government, | wish to confidentially refer
details of matters relating to animal wi e Sidmouth property to you for your review and

action, where appropriate, prior to the plblic release of the Final Report.

/

Should you decide to take action based on this information, | request that you handle the details with
the utmost confidentiality, arntthapthe source of this information remains undisclosed until the Final
Report is publicly relea % anticipating that the Final Report will be publicly released sometime
in the coming two weekS\gndPyour cooperation in maintaining this confidentiality in the meantime
would be greatly appreciatéd.

Animal Wi ct 1993, ensuring natural justice and due process is accorded will be critical, even
when ndings of the Final Report are made public. The Report findings’ standard of proof is not
the sam¢ that will apply to a matter that may require judicial consideration.

As you w& eciate, with any allegations relating to animal welfare and potential breaches of the
fa

The animal welfare allegations and findings that may amount to breaches of the Act outlined within
the Final Report are as detailed below in italics for your ease of reference.

“Failure to care for two-year-old gelding Blings on Fire:

A notice of 4 August 2023 required Ben Yole to answer an allegation that as the owner and trainer of
the two-year-old pacer Blings on Fire, and having responsibility for its welfare under AHRR 218, he
failed to properly care for that gelding in that he started Blings on Fire in race I, the $26,000 Cavalor
Equine 2YO Colts & Geldings Sweepstakes Final at Hobart on 3 September 2022, when a tongue tie
had not been removed for some four days following its race start at Launceston on 28 August 2022.
Such occurrence resulted in Blings on Fire not being able to eat during that period and accordingly not
being in an acceptable condition to race on 3 September 2022.
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In reaching that determination the investigation gave regard to but was not limited to the following
material:

o On 21 August 2022 at Hobart, Blings on Fire racing first up from a spell finished fourth of
four starters (beaten |7.4 metres) in a heat of the Cavalor Equine 2YO Colts & Geldings
Sweepstakes and in so doing, qualified to run in the Final on 3 September 2022.

o On 28 August 2022 Blings on Fire competed in, and finished second (beaten 1.6 metres) in
race 2, the Launceston Veterinary Group Two Year Old, over 1,680 metres.

o An interview on 9 June 2023 in which a former Ben Yole stable employee and driver, gave
evidence that on or about | September 2022 it was discovered by stable employees that a
tongue tie in the form of a rubber band had not been removed from Bfings opffirg subsequent
to its race of 28 August 2022. The former employee and driver stated “the
horse there, it was called Blings on Fire, and it was a two year old, so :/// inN’race and
then it came home and they forgot to take the tongue tie off i //ﬁ\g// QeN@ngue tie got left on
for four days...”. - ’

Y,
o Further, the former employee and driver gave evidence’s ega;/// ng jhevol dition. /of the two year
old and stated, “they took the tongue tie off and //i/o/g/e ke i ,,’a' /gomg to die and it

wouldn’t eat, like it was really skinny, and its to/;
g
© The former employee and driver gave evidence t h

of stable foreman Tim Yole and said, “thi éﬁf -

@ On 3 September 2022 Blings on F;%/%/

2Y0 Colts & Geldings Sweepstakes Ff;)a 0 9 r‘”tégz tfainer Ben Yole, where it finished last.
It was beaten by 2k metres -bUt e/{/:fff / ¢

10 years standing and, the br //})th of Be en /Y e,zwho said: “ reckon that would be very unlikely that
would have happened ?byt Mé ard l def initely don’t remember him ever coming to me about that.

/}ctoer 2023, stated that “| find it inconceivable that a horse could

Ben Yole /// lis 5t __
days and no person remove it”. He stated that after a race a horse

haveat eu

passes t@/ ough eﬁ@rds// of its strapper, the float driver and whoever unloads it off the float. Further,
;r//x/”ﬁﬁ i //’/ w of 4 Oc;ober '2023, Ben Yole was asked whether the foreman would refer to the

_. //// :

t any dgcision of fitness to race, to which he answered, “He would Sir, yes”.

)inves¥gation, in determining non-compliance by Ben Yole with AHRR 218, prefers the evidence of
Fher employeeldriver, which it finds credible. That evidence is supported by the absence of any
r credible explanation for the subsequent poor race performance of Blings on Fire, which was
beaten by the huge margin of 21 | metres in the Final at Hobart on 3 September 2022 and was
found to be sound upon examination subsequent to the race by the Club’s Veterinary Surgeon.

Mistreatment of horses in the wash bay on race days at Sidmouth property:

A notice of 4 August 2023 required Ben Yole, and a notice of 7 August 2023 required Tim Yole, to
answer an allegation of the mistreatment of horses in their care between | April 2020 and | April
2023, in contravention of AHRR 218A(1) and (2), in that they systematically arranged for a selected
number of horses to be brought to the wash bay area at the Yole Sidmouth property prior to such
horses being loaded onto horse transports to race at Tasmanian harness race meetings. Further, that
the horses were tied up and fitted with blinds and earplugs, whereby Tim Yole and Ben Yole deployed
physical and vocal abuse including making loud and excessive noises to frighten andlor terrorise such
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horses. This practice involved pulling down the blinds and earplugs and using a harness whip, encased
in a plastic bag to exacerbate the noise, to wave around the said horses andlor to strike them in the
region of the rump and hind legs whilst loudly shouting at them.

In reaching that determination the investigation gave regard to but was not limited to evidence given
by seven former stable employees, of race day practices involving horses in the wash bay area at the
Yole Sidmouth property namely:

*  Immediately prior to horses being loaded onto horse transports at the Sidmouth training
property to be taken to compete at race meetings in Tasmania, Ben Yole, in concert with Tim
Yole, systematically arranged for a number of horses to be firstly brought to the wash bay.

e While in the wash bay, horses were tied up and fitted with blinds andlor ear

e  As the blinds and earplugs were removed a harness whip, encased :'r?.i{'? a
exacerbate the noise levels, was used by Ben Yole and Tim Yo!p to defle
7 /

whilst also making loud and excessive noise, including shoutfng, ,z,/of/. Tighte

ical abuse,

.'// terrar;se the

horse. //
= //////////
®  The whip made contact with the rump, hind legs an [ r” r ‘%‘;/ Gy
®  Such actions were directed by Ben Yole and Tim Yole to® sin ufg%e conditions in the

"
latter stages of a race, when a driver asks the

In written and verbal submissions of 4 October 202

described by stable employees but with the dis in 7 ,///9 i
less often than alleged, lasted five to 10 se{ / ¥, a 5/4?& no physical contact was made
by the whip encased in the plastic bag with the ho 'SE, ut rather the contact was with the wall of the

wash bay. They also stated that th //// ctife

urred about once a month, that being

The investigation has deteynmed g ctions as described by Ben Yole and Tim Yole, on their

’;//, g 7
evidence alone, would consptute ‘misthg patment’ of a horse, which is defined in the rules as to “abuse
or treat a horse badfyié//rue:‘fy////}/a / fam‘y //f he | mvest.'gatfon rejects the submissions of Ben Yole that it
can be condoned as be g?seené- be equ:vafent to the actions of a driver towards a horse in the latter
") ‘u "between what may be permissible under the rules in a race does not
\pé ﬁ;ﬁs / e outside the parameters of the track. The investigation, in
ce WR%AHRR 218A(1), prefers the corroborative first-hand accounts of

the scaa‘e duration and means employed by Ben Yole and Tim Yole.

contact was actually made with the whip to the horse, it finds that regardless
made such actions were directed primarily at frightening and terrorising the
duce a superior performance that race day and as such constituted mistreatment.

¢ to extend the full support of Biosecurity Tasmania in any investigation you may
undertake. The information upon which Mr Murrihy has based his findings (primarily witness
statements) can be made available upon request. | would note in relation to the wash bay matters that
admissions have been made, and accordingly it may be appropriate in the first instance for the RSPCA
and Biosecurity Tasmania to assess the evidence to determine if any further investigation is required.
Should you choose to avail yourself of this assistance, please contact Rae Burrows, General Manager
(Biosecurity) on or via rae.burrows@nre.tas.gov.au. We are committed to collaborating
with you to address any concerns or enquiries you may have regarding this information.
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Mr Murrihy’s Final Report also makes a number of observations regarding the condition of the
Sidmouth Property, none of which are likely to be a surprise to you, as detailed below:

e Stocking density. Between /20 to |60 horses are paddock trained from an area primarily located
within an 800 metre training circuit, but including some small yards on the outside of the track
perimeter. The property is determined to be clearly overstocked for its size and facilities.

e Ground conditions. Drainage is deficient, with substantial areas being waterlogged and muddy in
winter, and subject to a high level of dust in dry and windy summer conditions.

e Feeding regime. Although good quality grain mix is fed and there are sufficient feed and water
receptacles for the number of horses, the feeding system does not, however, adequately address the
predictable horse behaviour pattern of bullying by dominant horses, which can result jgfless-dominant
horses not receiving sufficient nutrition. 4,

e Protection from weather extremes. Shelter and shade provisions )//Ip// th gofeshade cloth are
insufficient and inadequate, and do not provide acceptable protection 6{ ] again

weather elements. v,

W
W

o i
eatment log book to be

level of treatment entries
gl f”,;//;/eat ent ent

g T A y
e Veterinary treatment records. The investigation found entries
S

quite superficial, not an accurate record and not being reflectiveg

expected of a training establishment of this size. //////////

Q

v _
Ip at ce////f‘r’.,’j/ ///etings or held on stationary
horse transports for unduly long periods, whWn to |6 hours for Hobart
meetings, due principally to staff and transport |i

L
o

which has been made public, | will again

yto consider in the development of the new
ed previously, enforceability is key to the success

While these issues were referenced in the Inter
seek to refer these observations to Tasraci

Equine Welfare Code of Practice. As we haw
of any new code.

Again, | would request that th .._,,/r}/}‘orm}ti' n be keptin the strictest of confidence until such a time
that the Final Report is pubii% ré/lé// kd. | willadvise of the specific date once the timeline is
confirmed.

o
W, Y
o W
///// ////

7
should

Please do not hes >ntac me you wish to discuss these matters further.

i

//////////

Jason Jacobi
SECRETARY

5 January 2024

Page 4 of 4
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Dear Jenny,
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| hope that additional information is of assistance. | look forw eting with you tomorrow morning. Please
don’t hesitate to reach out if you have any other questions in time.

Kind regards, Ness @V

Part A - page 46



ASSESSED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT TASMANIA UNDER THE RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2009

From: Rudolf, Jenny <Jenny.Rudolf@justice.tas.gov.au> .

Sent: Thursday, 11 January 2024 9:46 AM

To: Jacobi, Jason <Jason.Jacobi@nre.tas.gov.au>

Cc: Wilson, Deidre <Deidre.Wilson@nre.tas.gov.au>; Pinto, Vanessa <Va . nre.tas.gov.au>
Subject: # advice re

Dear Jason
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Regards,

Jenny Rudolf | Assistant Solicitor-General

Office of the Solicitor-General, Department of Justice
p (03) [ | e jenny.rudolf@justice.tas.gov.au | w www.justice.tas.gov.au
I5 Murray Street, Hobart, TAS 7000 | GPO Box 825 Hobart, TAS 7001

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER: This email and any attachments are confidential and may be legally privileged {in
lost by mistaken delivery). The email and any attachments are intended only for the intended addressee(s). Please notify us
this email and any attachments by mistake, and delete them. If this email and any attachments include advice, that adyice is b
instructions received by the sender. Any unauthorised use of this email and any attachments is expressly prohibited.
or other defects in this email and any attachments, is limited to re-supplying this email and any attachments.

either is waived or
re email if you have received
d O, and limited to, the
connection with any viruses

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER

The information in this transmission may be confidential and/or protected by legal professio]
whom it is addressed. If you are not such a person, you are warned that any disclosure, co
have received the transmission in error, please immediately contact this office by telepggone,
arrangements to be made for the destruction of the transmission, or its return at ourg®st. No

contained in this transmission.

Y4

\%

d is intended only for the person or persons to
mination of the information is unauthorised. If you
ail, to inform us of the error and to enable

ility is accepted for any unauthorised use of the information

N\
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From: Rudolf, Jenny <Jenny.Rudolf@justice.tas.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 11 January 2024 10:12 AM

To: Jacobi, Jason

Cc: Wilson, Deidre; Pinto, Vanessa

Subject: RE: # advice re
Attachments: 44568 - 19 June 2014 - Advice to Tony Murray.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hello again,

Sorry, | forgot to also mention the attached previous advice, relevant to the status of the R ac¥ig (19 June
2014, OSG ref 44568).

Regards,

Jenny Rudolf | Assistant Solicitor-General ,
Office of the Solicitor-General, Department of Justice

p (03) T | e jenny.rudolf@justice.tas.gov.au | w www.justice.tas.gov.au
I5 Murray Street, Hobart, TAS 7000 | GPO Box 825 Hobart, TAS 7001 %

From: Rudolf, Jenny

Sent: Thursday, 11 January 2024 9:46 AM

To: Jacobi, Jason (NRE) <Jason.Jacobi@nre.tas.gov.au>

Cc: Wilson, Deidre (DPIPWE) <Deidre.Wilson@nre.tas. u>; Pito, Vanessa (DPIPWE)
<Vanessa.Pinto@nre.tas.gov.au>
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Pinto, Vanessa

Thursday, 11 January 2024 10:54 AM
To: Rudolf, Jenny (Dol); Jacobi, Jason
Cc: Wilson, Deidre; Gunner, Sam
Subject: RE: # advice re

Importance: High

HiJenny

Thank you so much for the advice you sent through to Jason this morning and the follow up e
appended prior advice from 2014.
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| appreciate your time and expertise in reviewing these matters.
If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me. Your prompt r e tofthis inquiry
is highly appreciated.

Kind regards, Ness

<
v/
&

Y4

\%

From: Rudolf, Jenny <Jenny.Rudolf@justice.tas.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 11 Japuary ﬁ24 10:12 AM
To: Jacobi, Jason Z&cobi@nre.tas.gov.aw

Cc: Wilson, Dei .Wilson@nre.tas.gov.au>; Pinto, Vanessa <Vanessa.Pinto@nre.tas.gov.au>
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From: Gunner, Sam

Sent: Thursday, 11 January 2024 2:59 PM

To: Pip Shirley

Cc: Fletcher, Stuart

Subject: Cabinet Minute - MO Changes

Attachments: Attachment B - Cabinet Minute - Murrihy Final Report.pdf
Hi!

I've just received the MO amended version. | have requested the changes below but given they oy shared a pdf
with us, I'm guessing they weren’t seeking our feedback, so the revisions may not make it any furt

Don’t hesitate to reach out an

Warm regards \

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

ertainly keep you informed if more changes come through!

o

4

ion, or its return at our cost. No liability is accepted for any unauthorised use of the information contained in this transmission.
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THE HON FELIX ELLIS MP, MINISTER FOR RACING

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE TO THE FINAL REPORT OF THE
MURRIHY REVIEW INTO HARNESS RACING IN TASMANIA

To approve the public release of the Final Report of the Murrihy Review into
Harness Racing in Tasmania and to approve the proposed Governmght gesponse.

Cabinet approval (Cabinet Decisions AFD 1222 an AFD[Oi) which relate to

the Racing Regulation and Integrity Bill 2023 and ghe Racing Regulation and
Integrity (Consequential Amendments) Bill 20

The Department of Prerier and Cabinet and the Office of the Solicitor-General
were consulted in #fe preparation of this Minute.

" QY

After consideration by Cabinet.

Nil
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l. PURPOSE

1.2,

To approve the public release of the Final Report of the Murrihy Review into
Harness Racing in Tasmania.

To approve the proposed Government response.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

| RECOMMEND that Cabinet:

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

(the Murrihy Final Report) (Attachment 6.8.1);

NOTES the Final Report of the Murrihy Review into Harmness Rac?%na

APPROVES the public release of the Murrihy Final Report;

APPROVES the Government response to the Murri Finaﬁeport (Attachment

&
&

Y4
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3.  BACKGROUND

3.1 The independent review into allegations of team driving and/or race fixing, and
serious animal welfare concerns relating to the harness racing industry and the
management of those issues by the Office of Racing Integrity (ORI) (the Murrihy
Review) was initiated by the Government in March 2023.

32 The Murrihy Review had specific and defined Terms of Reference (ToR) that
relate to racing as well as operational matters for harmess racing, including
complaints management by ORI. A report on the Murrihy Review was gkpected
by 30 June 2023. However, due to a request from Mr Murrihy for a nsion
of time, an Interim Report into matters of alleged team driving ang '
and animal welfare concemns relating to the harness ragn8
management of those issues by the Office of Racing Integrity (the
Report) was instead provided by 31 August 2023. The Mg

Qrihy Interim
Report was

released to the public on |9 September 2023. P 4

3.3 The Murrihy Interim Report and Final Report arcN\ggbvided at a time when the
Government has introduced legislation into th Assembly to implement
certain recommendations of the review of tf€ Rgting Regulation Act 2004 by
independent racing expert Mr Dale Mon inet Decisions AFD |16 and
AFD 232).

to the review in 2022 and iled Government response was released
on 30 November 2022 ( nment Response to the Monteith Review)

(Cabinet Decision AI@
35 On 27 March 2023 CaBiget approved the repeal of the Racing Regulation Act

2004 and the creatigh of new primary legislation to implement the Government
Response Wonteith Review. This draft legislation, the Racing Regulation and
RIMIN2
a

34  The Monteith Review was releaged wit initial high-level Government response
a/&d/a
o

Integrit 3 and the associated Racing Regulation and Integrity
(Con ' mendments) Bill 2023, was tabled in the House of Assembly on
|5 Novagb€r 2023 (Cabinet Decisions AFD 1003 and AFD 1222).

4. ISS XNﬁ SUPPORTING INFORMATION

A The Murrihy Final Report addresses all seven ToRs in full, including incorporating
matters from the Interim Report in more detail.

2 The Final Report outlines 15 findings for Government consideration. A full list of
findings and the proposed Government response is provided at Attachment 6.8.2.

43 The findings in the Report relate to mistreatment of animals, unlawfully
advantaging or disadvantaging horses in races, administering injections in
contravention of Race Rules, a need for minimum standards in the Tasracing Code
of Practice for Equine Welfare, and a need for improvements in the practice of
ORI stewards (examples of poor practice have included a lack of record keeping,
complaints management procedures and investigation procedures, and a need to
deal with complaints in a timely and consistent manner that
promotes transparency and accountability). Concemingly, findings relate to
large-scale trainers that continue to operate in Tasmania's racing industry.
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44 Asthese matters span across TasRacing, the Office of Racing Integrity and RSPCA,
| have written to the Secretary of NRETas seeking coordination of all responses
to the Final Report be through him, with appropriate governance arrangements.
Progress Reports will be made to me quarterly which will then published on the
NRETas website.

4.5 | have also written to the Director of Racing and provided him with a copy of the
Final Report for assessment and appropriate action. As there is a new Director
(from 26 December 2023), the conflict of interest with findings in the Murrihy

Report no longer exist. My letter requests assessment of the Murri eport,
along with other public material (specifically the matters regarding le
and work, health and safety of employees) to determine fit an erygrson

assessments to hold a licence under the Racing Rules.

4.6 The Director of Racing will provide information back to the Sgcr of NRETas
for inclusion in the progress reports. P 4
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Hon Felix Ellis MP
Minister for Racing

Date: 11/1/2024
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From: Rudolf, Jenny <Jenny.Rudolf@justice.tas.gov.au>

Sent: Friday, 12 January 2024 9:02 AM

To: Pinto, Vanessa; Jacobi, Jason

Cc: Wilson, Deidre; Gunner, Sam

Subject: # advice re AH Racing Rules licence suspension r 183, 300; OSG 35214-23
Attachments: OPD 22 292 #advice inconsistent provisions - Local Rules of Racing 26355-22v2.docx -

026355-22 - Nicole Winton - 4489144.pdf

Categories: Jason to read/answer

Dear Vanessa

You ask for a prompt response to your request below (which | won’t try to restate).

Please don’t hesitat&to contact me further.

Regards,

Jenny Rudolf [Wssistant Solicitor-General
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

Sent: Thursday, 11 January 2024 10:54 AM

To: Rudolf, Jenny <Jenny.Rudolf@justice.tas.gov.au>; Jacobi, Jason (NRE) <Jason.Jacobi@nre.tas.gov.au>

Cc: Wilson, Deidre (DPIPWE) <Deidre.Wilson@nre.tas.gov.au>; Gunner, Sam (NRE) <Sam.Gunner@nre.tas.gov.au>
Subject: RE: # advice re appeal re AH Racing Rules licence suspension or cancellation r 90; OSG 35214-23
Importance: High

HiJenny
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Thank you so much for the advice you sent through to Jason this morning and the follow up email with the
appended prior advice from 2014.

We have some further questions and would appreciate your consideration and response to the following.
| note further, Cabinet are meeting Tuesday next week to consider these matters more broadly ahead of | anticipate
a release of the Murrihy Report next week. So your timely advice is greatly appreciated

| appreciate your time and expertise in reviewing these matters.

2
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If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me. Your prompt response to this inquiry
is highly appreciated.

Kind regards, Ness

Vanessa Pinto (she, her, hers) | Chief Operations Officer

‘5" ri Strategy and Business Services
~ 7| Department of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania
,..*/ 134 Macquarie Street HOBART TAS 7000

Tasmanian | M
Government E: vanessa.pinto@nre.tas.gov.au
W: www.nre.tas.gov.au

Delivering a sustainable Tasmania |

In recognition of the deep history and culture of this island, | acknowledge ~nd
pay my respects to all Tasmanian Aboriginal people; the past and present custodians of the o A,

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER

The information in this transmission may be confidential and/or protected by legal pro
whom it is addressed. If you are not such a person, you are warned that any disclo
have received the transmission in error, please immediately contact this office by t
arrangements to be made for the destruction of the transmission, or its return at our ci
contained in this transmission.

Ivilege, and is intended only for the person or persons to
or dissemination of the information is unauthorised. If you
or email, to inform us of the error and to enable

1ability is accepted for any unauthorised use of the information

\%
N\
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. 0000000000000 0

From: Gunner, Sam

Sent: Friday, 12 January 2024 12:18 PM

To: Shirley, Pip

Subject: RE: Cabinet Minute - MO Changes -Cabinet in confidence

Attachments: Attachment 6.8.2 - Summary Table of Recommendations and proposed Government Response

UPDATED Jan 10 2024.pdf

Thanks again Pip

We’ve had yet another version of the Government response shared with us (attached). Again, I'v back
identifying changes, but whether they get through or not I’'m not sure.

Please don’t hesitate to call mei wish to discuss further.

\/

Warm regar

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
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From: Shirley, Pip <Pip.Shirley@dpac.tas.gov.au>

Sent: Thursday, January 11, 2024 3:56 PM

To: Gunner, Sam <Sam.Gunner@nre.tas.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Cabinet Minute - MO Changes -Cabinet in confidence

We now hat this through our CM system, and it looks like these are the attachments.

Pip

From: Gunner, Sam <Sam.Gunner@nre.tas.gov.au> Q~

Sent: Thursday, 11 January 2024 3:37 PM

To: Shirley, Pip <Pip.Shirley@dpac.tas.gov.au>

Cc: Hiscock, Simon <Simon.Hiscock@dpac.tas.gov.au>; James, Stuart <Stuart.James@% ®as.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Cabinet Minute - MO Changes

Hi Pip

So far as | am aware, there are no changes to the Government resp "m asking Jason to confirm that with
Elaina Deayton now and will let you know if there were.

Warm regards V

r, Portfolio Services

Sam Gunner (she, her, h
Strategy and Business S

Department of Natural Res@urces and Environment Tasmania
134 Macquarie Street’obart

M:

E: sam. ov.au

From: Shirley;Rip <Pip.Shirley@dpac.tas.gov.au>

Sent: Thursday, January 11, 2024 3:08 PM

To: Gunner, Sam <Sam.Gunner@nre.tas.gov.au>

Cc: Hiscock, Simon (DPaC) <Simon.Hiscock@dpac.tas.gov.au>; James, Stuart (DPaC)
<Stuart.James@dpac.tas.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Cabinet Minute - MO Changes

HI Sam, so we know if there was any change to the attachment related to the Government’s response?
Thanks

Pip
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From: Gunner, Sam <Sam.Gunner@nre.tas.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 11 January 2024 2:59 PM
To: Shirley, Pip <Pip.Shirley@dpac.tas.gov.au>

Cc: Fletcher, Stuart (DPIPWE) <Stuart.Fletcher@nre.tas.gov.au>
Subject: Cabinet Minute - MO Changes




ASSESSED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT TASMANIA UNDER THE RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2009

From: Gunner, Sam

Sent: Friday, 12 January 2024 2:07 PM

To: Pip Shirley

Cc: Hiscock, Simon (DPaC)

Subject: FW: Government Response to the Independent Review undertaken into Harness Racing in

Tasmania- Murrihy Final Report- January 2024

Hi Pip

Here is my latest advice to the MO.

Warm regards

Sam Gunner (she, her, hers) | Director, Portfolio Seryiggs
Strategy and Business Services

Department of Natural Resources and Enviro ania
134 Macquarie Street, Hobart

M: 0408 244 322
E: sam.gunner@nre.tas.gov.au
W: nre.tas.gov.au

V4

From: Gunner, Sam V

Sent: Friday, January 12, 2024 ;

To: Gaetani, Luke <Luke.Gaetani@dpac.tas.gov.au>

Cc: Deayton, Elaina (DPaC) <EJaina’Deayton@dpac.tas.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Governr&’fR ponse to the Independent Review undertaken into Harness Racing in Tasmania-
t

Murrihy Final Re uary 2024

Hi Luke,

Thank you for Yeur prompt response.
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

e

E: sam.gunner@nre.tas.gov.au

W: nre.tas.gov.au
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From: Deayton, Elaina <Elaina.Deayton@dpac.tas.gov.au>

Sent: Sunday, 14 January 2024 4:40 PM

To: Healey, Mathew (DPaC)

Cc: Jacobi, Jason; Pinto, Vanessa; Hiscock, Simon (DPaC); Ellis, Minister (DPaC); Gaetani, Luke
Subject: RE: Government's Response to the Murrihy Report

Attachments: Attachment 6.8.2 - Proposed Government Response UPDATED .docx

Hi Mat,

Amended version, noting that the first quarterly report will contain details regarding the outcom essments

regarding Code of Conduct.

Jason and Ness, apparently there is an issue with the format of this, Sam Gunner provide entary on it on
Friday. We took the table you had provided to us in the Attachment and added the |leaghi entary, so if this
needs any updating before it goes live, are you able to ensure that it occurs? P

Ta

Elaina %

From: Healey, Mathew <Mathew.Healey@dpac.tas.gov.au>

Sent: Friday, 12 January 2024 4:57 PM

To: Deayton, Elaina <Elaina.Deayton@dpac.tas.gov.au>

Cc: Jacobi, Jason (NRE) <Jason.Jacobi@nre.tas.gov.au>; Wessa (DPIPWE) <Vanessa.Pinto@nre.tas.gov.au>;
Hiscock, Simon <Simon.Hiscock@dpac.tas.gov.au>

Subject: Government's Response to the Murrih

Hi all

Note that pose this change in DPAC’s advisory unless you would prefer to send through a revised version
of the Governfent’s response.

Regards
Mat

Mathew Healey | A/g Deputy Secretary
Policy and Delivery Division

Department of Premier and Cabinet
Level 7, 15 Murray Street
Hobart, Tasmania 7000

(p)+613 [
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From: Thompson, Robin P

Sent: Wednesday, 24 January 2024 9:53 AM

To: Tom Cox

Cc: Pinto, Vanessa

Subject: RE: Murrihy Report

Hi Tom,

Many thanks for your sound advice with which | am in full agreement.
Cheers

Robin

Robin Thompson | General Manager

Director of Racing

Office of Racing Integrity

Department of Natural Resources and Environment Ta ania/
171 Westbury Road Prospect

Tasmanian PO Box 46 Kings Meadows 7249
Government M %

E: robin.thompson@racingintegrity.tas.gov.
W: www.nre.tas.gov.au

)
~

-
%)

-

-

From: Tom Cox <tom.cox@tasbar.com.au>
Sent: Wednesday, January 24, 2024 9:50 AM
To: Thompson, Robin P <Robin.Thompson@raci
Cc: Pinto, Vanessa <Vanessa.Pinto@nre.tas.g
Subject: Murrihy Report

Y4

Dear Robin,

If you require any further advice once a request is made, please contact me if necessary.

Tom Cox

Barrister

Malthouse Chambers
119 Hampden Road
P.O.Box 20

Battery Point, Tas, 7004

ph:03[ | fax: 03 6223 5466
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From: Thompson, Robin P

Sent: Wednesday, 31 January 2024 8:16 PM

To: David Manshanden

Cc: Wilson, Deidre; Jacobi, Jason; Andrew Jenkins
Subject: Re: Security at Mowbray Friday 2 February 2024
Categories: FYI

Hi Dave

Many thanks.

Our team and participants will appreciate it.

Cheers

Robin

Sent from my iPhone

Y4

On 31 Jan 2024, at 7:56 pm, David Manshanden <d.man ndgn@tasracing.com.au>
wrote:

Hi Robin,
Thanks for your email.

| can confirm two additional security offic€rs Mn booked for the LCN 2 Feb and HOB 4
Feb meetings.

One guard will be on the premises two Rgurs before the first race and be located to the outside
of the steward's room. The other ayitional officer will be roaming the tie up stalls area unless
advised otherwise.

The other two officer.

itoring the front entrance / grandstand and surrounds.

. Laur\wnﬁriday - 4 x security - 1 to start at4pm, 3 to start at 5pm.

Hobart Sunday 4 x security - 1 to start at 4pm, 3 to start at 5pm.

Regards
Dave

From: Thompson, Robin P <Robin.Thompson@racingintegrity.tas.gov.au>

Sent: Wednesday, January 31, 2024 4:53 PM

To: David Manshanden <d.manshanden@tasracing.com.au>

Cc: Wilson, Deidre <Deidre.Wilson@nre.tas.gov.au>; Jacobi, Jason <Jason.Jacobi@nre.tas.gov.au>
Subject: Security at Mowbray Friday 2 February 2024
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This message was sent from outside your organisation. Do not click links or open attachments unless you know
the content is safe.

Hi Dave,

Further to our telephone conversation earlier this afternoon | request Tasracing give consideration
to increased and or reviewed security arrangements for the harness meeting scheduled for
Mowbray on Friday evening 2 February 2024.

This request is to ensure the workplace safety of ORI staff, licenced participants named in the
Murrihy report and race attendees.

Given release of the Murrihy report today | expect emotions may be heightened at this event and
thus NRE Tas has a duty of care to ensure the workplace health and safety of ORI staff working at
this event.

| look forward to your positive response.

Cheers

Robin

Robin Thompson | General Manager

Director of Racing

Office of Racing Integrity

Department of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania
<image001.jpg> | 171 Westbury Road Prospect

PO Box 46 Kings Meadows 7249

T: M:

E: robin.thompson@racingintegrity.tas.

W: www.nre.tas.gov.au

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER:

The information in this transmission may be confidential and/or prqgected by professional privilege, and is intended only for the
person or persons to whom it is addressed. If you are not suchgt peQgn, yg are warned that any disclosure, copying or dissemination
of the information is unauthorised. If you have received the g sioNggPerror, please immediately contact this office by telephone,
fax or email, to inform us of the error and to enable arrange 0 bg made for the destruction of the transmission, or its return at our
cost. No liability is accepted for any unauthorised use maifn contained in this transmission.

Y4

\%
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From: Hall, Stephen <Stephen.Hall@nre.tas.gov.au>
Sent: Tuesday, February 6, 2024 10:38 AM

To: @rspcatas.net.au

Subject: Ray Murrihy Harness Racing Investigation

Hi Malcolm

| was at a meeting last Friday involving your CEO (Jan Davis), Deidre Wilson (Dep Sec of NRE Tas) and Rae Burrows
(GM of Biosecurity Tasmania).

One of the decisions of the meeting was for me to arrange to provide you with some transcripts of interviews
(conducted by Murrihy under compulsion as part of his investigation under the Racing Rules). The background and
final report of the Murrihy review is on the NRE Tas website (see link below)
https://nre.tas.gov.au/about-the-department/independent-racing-investigation

| could probably send you the transcripts ele?ronically by email but I’'m conscious that this is not the most secure

means. If you have any other method of shari
we could arrange to share that way.

ng large files electronically securely such as sharepoint or MS Teams

Give me a call if you would Iike ss (my mob. is below)

Regards /
Steve &\
Stephen Hall
‘ﬂ.'-. Principal Adviser | Legal Services
= ,y BIOSECURITY TASMANIA
~ Department of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania

Tasmanian M:
Government E: Stephen.Hall@nre.tas.gov.au

W: www.nre.tas.gov.au
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Department of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY

Hobart GPO Box 44, Hobart, Tasmania, 7001
Launceston PO Box 46, Kings Meadows, Tasmania, 7249
Devonport PO Box 303, Devonport, Tasmania, 7310
Qur Ref: D24-45204

Mr Gene Phair

Chair

Tasracing
gene.phair@outlook.com

Andrew Jenkins
Chief Executive Officer
Tasracing

a.jenkins

Dear Messrs PhaMs C\ . ' @

Murrihy Final Report - Governme

| am writing to formally advise of Tasracing’s responsibj

tasracing.com.au

Government's response to Mr Ray Murrihy’s indepen

race fixing and animal welfare concerns in the T

ania

Tasmanian
Government

Y4

e Actions

implementation of actions from the
j&w into allegations of team driving,

#

Government Response

I

this report for
abl€’ minimum standards for
harness training properties in the Code of
Practicgbeing®developed by Tasracing. Many
rec Nt&ons will address those animal
falg conditions currently found of concern
h respect to the Sidmouth training property.
mendations of this report include that
minimum standards be given the full

authority of the rules so that they are
enforceable.

The Government acknowledges

Mr Murrihy’s advice on the draft Equine
Code of Practice for the care of
thoroughbred and harness racehorses and
its recommended enforcement under the
AHRR and supports the progression of a
Code of Practice that provides measurable
standards, and the formation of
enforceable rules, noting these matters
are being considered by Tasracing as the
entity responsible under the Racing
Regulation Act 2004 for the AHRR.

Rehoming, euthanasia and slaughter of horses:
The review recommends as a priority that
comprehensive rehoming and traceability rules
be developed in Tasmania by the TasRIC and
Tasracing - requiring owners and/or persons
responsible to take a whole of life responsibility
for the post racing welfare of their horses. This
recommendation includes:

The Government further acknowledges
Mr Murrihy’s advice on matters of
rehoming, euthanasia and the slaughter of
horses and notes these matters are being
considered by Tasracing.
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# | Finding Government Response

- Introduction of local rules concerning
the retirement of horses; their
retraining and rehoming and associated
authorisations of euthanasia;

- Specific Euthanasia and Slaughter
sections within the proposed Code of
Practice be the subject of Australian and
local rules; and

- Establishment of an appropriate
traceability system.

[4 | The racing model itself requires a major The Government notes the e ed
overhaul to improve competition on the race relating to industry compe nd
track as fierce competition in races is the that Tasracing will consid8g these matters
industry's best safeguard against team driving and engage with indu ropriate.
and race fixing. Changes are recommended to
ratings, programming and balloting systems, Y4

with a big picture objective of engendering
more competitiveness, encouraging new
investment and participation and arresting the
most undesirable trend of Tasmania being a last
stopping off point for older non-competitive
mainland horses.

As you are aware, the Terms of Reference for, WRegulaﬂon Act Steering Committee, that
includes Tasracing representation, has been ed 8 be the Implementation Committee

responsible for the implementation of t ent’s response and to coordinate the quarterly
progress report to the Minister. The fi is due on 3| March 2024. The specific actions and
timeframes for the above are to be agreejthrough the Implementation Committee in March 2024.

| look forward to working with Tasrﬁng to improve confidence and trust in the Tasmanian harness
racing industry and to impletgent the important structural reform that the Racing Regulation and
Integrity Bill 2023 and islation will bring to the racing industry in general.

Yours sincerely

13 February 2024
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From: Jacobi, Jason

Sent: Thursday, 21 March 2024 11:29 AM

To: Jan Davis; Andrew Jenkins

Cc: Wilson, Deidre; Thompson, Robin P

Subject: Murrihy Report - animal welfare investigations

Importance: High

Dear Jan and Andrew,

R there has not been %ant
progress on the investigation of the Murrihy animal welfare issues i fied in his
report apart from some preliminary assessment of the cases by artment.

TasRacing agreed with the Minister for Racing to allocate ffinding to the RSPCA to
investigate these two matters (with the announcemen s#h 31 January), and that
a Grant Deed was the instrument that would give effe IS commitment.

It is critically important that these investigatio elundertaken in a timely manner
given the Murrihy Report was released on 31 Ja of this year. Any delay could
impact on the independent stewards pa liperation as stewards would generally
not consider animal welfare matters sx@ consideration under the Animal
Welfare Act 1993.

Itis also important to note that thgAct has strict timeframes within which to bring
proceedings for an offenc%fore acourt.

| understand thatyou a ng to reach agreement on the terms of the Deed and | ask
that you both pleaseg’ve is your highest priority so that the Deed is finalised and
both parties h the confidence to proceed.

be willin assist in negotiating appropriate terms and please do not hesitate to

If you arggb to agree the terms of the Grant Deed within the next week, | would
contact me’if there is anything that | can do to assist in expediting this work.

Regards,

Jason
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From: Andrew Jenkins <a.jenkins@tasracing.com.au>
Sent: Thursday, 21 March 2024 3:18 PM

To: Jacobi, Jason; Jan Davis

Cc: Wilson, Deidre; Thompson, Robin P

Subject: RE: Murrihy Report - animal welfare investigations

Hello Jason and thank you
We are working with the RSPCA on developing a reasonable scope to be included within the D€e

The ‘Approved Purpose’ needs to be a set of activities which Tasracing can assessto e atfunding is
spent appropriately

The matter is set for discussion at the Tasracing Board next Weds and | will be in a p@sition to discuss next
steps immediately post

Priority and importance of timing is understood

Kind regards %
Andrew

Andrew Jenkins V

Chief Executive Officer || Tasracing

it’s
why

we A rressaas from Tasmacing, on b

race
"

directy and indirecty by Rod

.au

Ladbrokes Park Noodwood Road Glenorchy TAS 7010
.Jenki g ing.

From: Jacobi, Jason <Jason.Jacobi@nre.tas.gov.au>

Sent: Thursday, March 21, 2024 11:29 AM

To: Jan Davis <jdavis@rspcatas.net.au>; Andrew Jenkins <a.jenkins@tasracing.com.au>
Cc: Wilson, Deidre <Deidre.Wilson@nre.tas.gov.au>; Thompson, Robin P
<Robin.Thompson@racingintegrity.tas.gov.au>

Subject: Murrihy Report - animal welfare investigations

Importance: High
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From: David Manshanden <d.manshanden@tasracing.com.au>
Sent: Thursday, March 28, 2024 12:25 PM

To: Naylor, Sara <Sara.Naylor@nre.tas.gov.au>
Subject: Update on Murrihy report

Hi Sara

Please see update below.
Cheers @V
DM Q~

ToR 7 Action 14 —we need an update on th| ne — has industry consultation commenced, how long will this
take and is there any other information relevant to include here e.g. online link?

e Industry consultation mmenced. Tasracing is finalising an industry wide survey to ascertain
whole of industry's views®0n changes to ensure more competitiveness of racing. Changes to the Equity
in Participat%nl‘y have begun with industry consultation and these changes are currently being

b

consider& e Tasracing Board.

ToR 7 Acti —T€ Tasracing’s COl policy — have staff been reminded of their obligations?

e Tasracing staff have been reminded of their obligations regarding the COI policy.

David Manshanden
Chief Operating Officer | Tasracing
Ladbrokes Park Elwick, 6 Goodwood Road Glenorchy TAS 7010

P I

Part A - page 98



ASSESSED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT TASMANIA UNDER THE RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2009

From: Jan Davis <jdavis@rspcatas.net.au>

Sent: Thursday, March 28, 2024 2:04 PM

To: Wilson, Deidre <Deidre.Wilson@nre.tas.gov.au>
Subject: Murrihy referral update

Hi there
This is where we are at ...

All the documents supplied from the Murrihy review have been considered in detail by
e Qur prosecutor;

e QOurseniorinspector; ,

e RSPCA Victoria’s Chief Inspector; and

e Me.
The consensus is that, as a result of the elapse of time and the lack st-hand evidence, there is little
likelihood of being able to secure a conviction in relation to the i question. This is particularly so for
the whipping allegations when the fact that we are almost oyf of tiffe for any prosecution to be successfulin
any case. At this point, then, we have come to the conclu at/Pwould neither be in the public interest, nor

practicable, to take steps to attain further evidence u% al Welfare Act 1998.
Hall'th

| understand from conversations with you and St at the department shares this view.

Happy for you to include any or Win your report —to support your commentary.

We can discuss further when out when we learn more about the outcome of the Tasracing
deliberations. ,

Regards \

Jan Davis
Chief Advoca
RSPCA Tasmania

HELPING ANIMALS - ENLIGHTENING PEOPLE - CHANGING LIVES
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From: Jacobi, Jason

Sent: Wednesday, 10 April 2024 2:17 PM

To: tania.rattray@parliament.tas.gov.au

Cc: Secretary; Pinto, Vanessa; Wilson, Deidre

Subject: Murrihy Report Recommendations - Progress update

Attachments: Murrihy Final Report - March 2024 Progress Report.pdf

Dear Tania,

As Chair of the Legislative Council Short Inquiry Committee into the role agd functions
of the Office of Racing Integrity, | thought it important to let you know tha ve now

published the first report (update) on progress into the Murrihy repor.
recommendations.

The link is here Independent Racing Investigation | Department of Natural ResoW ceS®nd Environment
Tasmania (nre.tas.gov.au) ,

| have also attached a copy of the report for your informatién

The recommendation of the short inquiry committee ase the Murrihy Report was
met, and we continue to work towards implementi onteith Review with a Bill
ready to take to the new Government for consjderation.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if@re any further information.
Regards,

Jason P4

Secretary
f Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania
134 vacquarie Street HOBART TAS 7000
: jason.jacobi@nre.tas.gov.au
PR» 03
W: www.nre.tas.gov.au

Please note: | often work irregular hours and if you receive an email from me outside of normal hours please do
not feel obliged to respond until the start of your next normal workday.
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From: Wilson, Deidre

Sent: Friday, 12 April 2024 5:49 PM
To: ‘Jan Davis'

Cc: Hall, Stephen; Burrows, Rae
Subject: RE: Murrihy referral

Dear Jan

Further to this matter, can you confirm whether the RSPCA has referred the “whipping matters”to the Director
of Racing for consideration by the Independent Panel?

Regards
Deidre

Deidre Wilson /
Deputy Secretary

Mobile: %

In recognition of the deep history and cuiiure of this island, | acknowledge and

pay my respects to all Tasmanian Aboriginal people; the past aid present custodians of the land.

Please note: | often work irregular hours and iyOu reéceive an email from me outside of normal hours please do
not feel obliged to respond until the start of yourtnext normal workday.

From: Wilson, Deidre

Sent: Friday, April 5, 2024 8 81 AM
To: Jan Davis

Cc: Hall, Stephe ephéw.Hall@nre.tas.gov.au>; Burrows, Rae <Rae.Burrows@nre.tas.gov.au>
Subject: Mu ref I

Dear Jan
Thank you for your advice on these matters.

| note the comprehensive review undertaken by the RSPCA of the referred Murrihy materials (transcripts of
interviews (conducted by Murrihy under compulsion as part of his investigation under the Racing Rules) and
the final report of the Murrihy review), including the involvement of the Victorian RSPCA Chief Inspector.

Regarding the “whipping matters” | note the advice of the RSPCA and that of our own legal officer that there is
little likelihood of securing a conviction under the Animal Welfare Act 1993, | would therefore ask that the
RSPCA please immediately refer this matter to the Director of Racing for consideration of the independent
stewards so that it can be considered as part of the investigation being conducted by the Stewards under the
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Australian Harness Racing rules to determine whether any disciplinary or other action under those rules
should be taken against Mr Yole. Please contact the Director of Racing to determine how this is best achieved.

For your information only (and you are likely aware), the limitation dates for filing a prosecution complaint before a
justice for the offences (not the full completion of a prosecution and trial) are —
e Aggravated animal cruelty under section 9 of the AWA - limitation date for that is 03/09/2027 (5 years from
the date of the alleged offence).
e Cruelty to animals under section 8 of the AWA - limitation date for that is 03/09/2024 (2 yegars from the

date of the alleged offence). Note that a person can be charged under s9 (aggravated anigfal gsuelty) but
instead be found guilty of this (less serious) offence under s8.
e Method of management of animals under section 7 of the AWA - limitation date f i 09/2024 (2

years from the date of the alleged offence).

Regards
Deidre ,

Deidre Wilson| Deputy Secretary
Y4 . .
Department of Natural Resources and 0 t Tasmania
" 134 Macquarie Street HOBART TAS 7000
"V E: deidre.wilson@nre.tas.gov.au

Tesmanian | v« S

Government W: www.nre.tas.gov.au V

In recognition of the deep history and culture of this island, | acknowledge and

pay my respects to all Tasmanian Aborigine! people; the past and present custodians of the land.

From: Jan Davis <jda 's@rs@atas.net.au>

Sent: Thursday, ‘_&2024 2:04 PM

To: Wilson, DeidfegDeidr®.Wilson@nre.tas.gov.au>
refe

Subject: M | update
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From: Thompson, Robin P

Sent: Monday, 22 April 2024 2:29 PM
To: Jan Davis

Cc: daylebro

Subject: RE: Murrihey recommendations
Hello Jan,

This issue has always been on the agenda of the independent panel but it was not going to be addressed by the
panel until a decision regarding potential action taken under the Animal Welfare Act 1993 was ejther finalised
or determined not to proceed.

I will hnow make this clear to the panel chairman who will schedule this issue into the time fth€ panel.
Cheers

Robin

Y4

Robin Thompson | General Manager
Director of Racing
- 7 Office of Racing Integrity %
= ,* Department of Natural Resources and iro t Tasmania
~ 171 Westbury Road Prospect
Tasmanian PO Box 46 Kings Meadows 7249
Government T: M:
E: robin.thompson@racingint .tas,®0v.au
W: www.nre.tas.gov.au

From: Jan Davis

Sent: Monday, April 22, 2024 12:20 PM ,

To: Thompson, Robin P <Robin.Thompson@racingintegrity.tas.gov.au>

Subject: Murrihey recommendation

Hi Robin

As you are aware, wg are u&lertaking a comprehensive review of the referred Murrihy materials (transcripts of
interviews (cond %Murrihy under compulsion as part of his investigation under the Racing Rules) and
the final report M

rihy review.
Regarding ipping matters”, our initial advice is that there is little likelihood of securing a conviction
under the An [ Welfare Act 1993.
I would therefore ask this matter be immediately referred to the independent panel so that it can be
considered as part of the investigation being conducted by the Stewards under the Australian Harness Racing
rules to determine whether any disciplinary or other action under those rules should be taken against Mr Yole.

I’m not sure logistically this is best achieved, so your advice is sought as to the best way forward.

Regards
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Jan Davis
Chief Advocate
RSPCA Tasmania

PO Box 66, Mowbray Tas 7248

HELPING ANIMALS - ENLIGHTENING PEOPLE - CHANGING LIVES

¢ Animal welfare
Mmatters to me

#speakunforanimals

public in order to carry out our work. This communication may contain information which is confide
from disclosure. It is intended for the named recipient only. Any disclosure, dissemination, distribu
substance is prohibited.

Please note I’'m sending this message now because it’s a good time for me, but | don’t exp u will read, respond, or action if this is outside your

own regular work hours.

Y4

\%
N\
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